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The Decision Framework to Determine Product Scope Must be Refined 

The ED lays out a framework in evaluating whether there is sufficient insurance risk in a product or 
instrument to determine whether insurance contract accounting is appropriate. However, the guidance 
(mainly that included in the table on pages 76 through 88 of the ED) is insufficiently clear and often 
seemingly contradictory, due to apparent inconsistencies in descriptions of specific terms and of 
instruments. Clear descriptions would allow for a more deliberate analysis of insurance risk. For example, 
the distinction between the insurer, the insured, the policyholder, and the beneficiary of a product is often 
vague. We believe these relationships are important within such an analysis . FlIIther, more guidance is 
needed in distinguishing financial risk from insurance risk. 

The following examples will assist the Board in understanding these comments, as banking products that 
appear to be captured in the scope of the ED are significantly different from other insurance products. 

Standby letter of credit (SLOC) 

A SLOe is significantly different from standard insurance contracts that are described in the ED. 

• The typical insurance agreement has two parties: the insured (with a related beneficiary) and the 
insurer. The insured/beneficiary have a common insurable interest in the insured item/person 
(and, thus, should be considered as related parties) and pay insurance premiums to the insurer. A 
SLOe is an instrument created in a transaction among three unre lated patties : a bank, a bank 
customer, and an investor. In contrast to the insurance product, in a SLOe, the patty with the 
ultimate insurable interest (the investor) does not pay an insurance premium (in this case, the 
premium would be the loan commitment fee). It is the bank customer that pays a commitment fee, 
and the presence of a SLOe normally results in a lower credit spread in the bond issued to the 
investor. The " insurance transaction" is basically a private transaction between the bank and the 
bank customer and can be thought of as collateral by the bond investor. The " pol icyholder" is the 
bank customer, not the investor. 

• Insurance claims normally result in a cash payment recorded as a loss (or loss payment) by the 
insurer with no required continuing involvement by the insurer. [n contrast, the claim arising from 
the contingent event in a SLOe resu lts in a loan by the bank to the banking customer - an asset 
by which the bank earns interest. 

• Insurance losses (or loss payments) are typically the cash used to settle a claim and are 
contractually defined. A SLOe is often fully collateralized, with no expected loss to be realized. 

In other words, the SLOe is effectively a loan commitment between a bank and its customer. Draws on 
an SLOe result in recording an asset (and not in recording a loss). Wh ile the table on page 85-86 of the 
ED notes instances in which a SLOe may be considered outside the definition of an insurance contract, 
the distinction between what is in scope and out of scope is confusing. 

Guarantees related to trust preferred securities (TPS) 

Guarantees made by bank holding companies related to TPS are normally to ensure that the available 
amounts that have been placed into the related trust for the payment of dividends are, in fact, actually paid 
to shareholders. Such guarantees of the TPS structure are necessary from a tax and regulatory aspect, and 
connect the bank holding company to the TPS holder. [n practice, however, they amount to the standard 
guarantee that a company makes when issuing debt or preferred stock. [f it is the intent that such 
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guarantees are to be considered insurance contracts, we recommend that this issue be addressed 
comprehensively within a separate project on promises to pay made withi n debt and equity instruments. 

loans sold with recourse or indemnification provisions 

It is common for financial institutions to sell loans with a recourse or indemnification provision in the 
sales agreement. If specific loans experience default or other adverse events, recourse provisions require 
the loans to be purchased back by the seller, whi le indemnification typica lly requires cettain payments to 
be made. Though not included in the table on page 76-88, under the gu ide lines of the ED, it appears that 
within these transactions, a third-patty (the se ller) is making a guarantee to the policyholder (the buyer) 
on the credit of the borrower. Therefore, such sa les would apparently qualify as insurance contracts. 

To include recourse and indemnification provisions within the definition of an insurance contract wou ld 
require changes to Topic 860-20 (Sales of financial assets) and we do not believe that it is the intent of the 
Board to make such changes. Cons istent with our discussion above, these provisions are credit risk­
related and, thus, more appropriately considered to be financial ri sks . 

Merger and acquisition guarantees 

The majority of merger and acquisition transactions have some kind of contingency in which future 
payments are required by either of the patties. As described in the ED, it is not c lear that such guarantees 
are sometimes provided by the acqu irer or a third-party, and are not limited to se llers . In the event the 
guarantee is provided by the acquirer, such a guarantee would appear to be out of the scope of insurance 
risk, as it relates to "own performance." In the event this represents a third-party guarantee, it appears to 
be equ ivalent to a standby letter of credit, which (as noted above) does not transfer "fortuitous risk", does 
not transfer risk between the policyholder to the guarantee provider, and merely represents a loan between 
the acquirer and the guarantor. 

* * * * * 

In summary, we strongly recommend that cred it risk, which does not result in fortuitous events, be 
considered a financial risk within the ED, disqualifying most banking products from the definition of an 
insurance contract. 

Thank you for your attention to these matters and for considering our views . Please feel free to contact me 
(robert.gorman@ bankatunion.com) if you wou ld like to discuss our views. 

Sincerely, 

Robert M. Gorman 
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 
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